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of EXt'f·LLENCE 

September 23, 2004 

Mr. R. Hendrix 
Catholic Cemeteries 
Archdiocese of Toronto 
4950 Yonge Street 
Toronto, ON M2N 6K1 

Dear Mr. R. Hendrix: 

• 

Clerk's Department 
Corporate Services Commission 

lfil~©illl U 00~[~!)~~~1~® 

2 4 -09- 200~ 

---------------

Re: By-law 2004-215- To designate certain properties as being of 
historic and/or architectural value or interest (Schoolhouse No. 7 -
3010 19th Avenue) 

This will advise that Council at its meeting held on August 31, 2004, passed By­
law 2004-215, which designated ''Schoolhouse No. 7

11

, 3010 19th Avenue, as 
being of historic and/or architectural value or interest. 

A copy of the by-law, with the pertinent registration data, is attached for your 
information. 

Sincerely, 

Sheila Birrell 
Town Clerk 

Encl. 

cc: The Ontario Heritage Foundation 
R. Hutcheson, Manager, Heritage Planning 

-

The Col ,,oration of The Town of Markham • 101 Town Centre Boulevard, Markham, Ontario L3R 9W3 
Website: www.markham.ca • Tel: 905-475-4744 • Fax: 905-479-7771 
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CERTIFIED A TRUE COPY 
''Sheila Birrell'' c/s 

SHEILA BIRRELL, TOWN CLERK 
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF MARKHAM 

EXCELLENCE 

A by-law to d~signate a property as being of 
Historic and/or ,Architectural Value or Interest 

Schoolhouse No. 7 

WHEREAS Pursuant to Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act, the council -of a 
municipality is authorized to enact by-laws to designate a real property, including all 
the buildings and structures thereon, to be of historic and/or architectural value or 
interest; 

REAS the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Markham has caused 
to be served on the owners of the lands and premises at: 

Mr. R. Hendrix 
Catholic Cemeteries, 
Archdiocese of Toton·to 
4950 Yonge Street 
Toronto, ON M2N 6Kl 

and upon the Ontario Heritage Foundation, notice of intention to designate 
Schoolhouse No. 7, 3010 19th Avenue and has caused such notice of intention to be 
published once in a newspaper having.a general circulation in the municipality; 

AND REAS the reasons for designations are set out in Schedule ''B;' attached 
hereto and fo1ming part of this by:-l·aw; 

' 

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OFT.HE TOWN 
OF HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

• 

1. THAT the following real properties, more particularly described in Schedule 
''A'' attached hereto and for1ning part of this by-law is hereby designated as 
being of historic and/or architectural value or interest: 

2 . 

Schoolhouse No. 7 
3010 19th Avenue 
Town of Markha1n 
The Regional Municipality of York 

• 

THAT the Town Solicitor is hereby authorized to cause a copy of this by-law 
to be registered against the properties described in Schedule ''A'' attached 
hereto in the property Land Registry Office. 

READ A FIRST, SECOND, AND TH I RD TIME 
31sTDAY OF AUGUST, 2004. 

PASSED THIS • 

''Patricia Miller'' ''Don Cousens'' 

~ PATRICIA MILLER, DEPUTY CLERK DON COUSENS, MAYOR 
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SCHEDULE 'A' TO 
2004-215 

In the Town of Markha111 in the Regional Municipality of York, property descriptions 
as follows: 

Con 4 Pt Lot 31 as in MA69295 

TOWN OF 
REGIONAL 

• 

ICIP ALITY OF YORK 

• 
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• 

STATEMENT OF REASONS FOR DESIGNATION 
' 

The Schoolhou$e, located at 3010 19th Avenue, is reco1mnended for designation under 
Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act because of its historical, architectural and 

• 

contextual significance. 

Historical Reasons • 

The first recorded schoolhouse servi:qg School Section No. 7 was located on Lot 30, 
Concession 4, at the south east comer of present day Woodbine and 19th A venues. 
This school, built on the farn1 of Richard Lewis, appears on the McPhillips map of 
1853-54 and also on a map of Markham Township school sections dated 1855. School 
section No. 7 served the community of northern Victoria Square and also Go1·1nley's 
Corners, a crossroads hamlet named for James Gormley in 1854. Inte1·estingly, 
Gonnley was an early teacher at S.S. No. 7, and became Gormley's first Post Master, 
as well as a store-keeper and auctioneer. 

The school was built in the midst of a thriving community of Pennsylvania-Germans 
of the Tunker faith. In early lists of Common Schools in Markham Township, no 
school is recorded at this particular crossroads, but in the 1830s there were schools in 
the vicinity in the communities of Almira and Victoria Square that may have served 
some of the local population. Historical research on Markham's Pennsylvania German 
Tunkers has suggested that this group of people probably had their own system of 
education prior to the formal establishment of Common Schools. 

By 1860, the location of the,schoolhouse serving School Section No. 7 had changed to 
the south west comer of the John Steckley farn1 on Lot 31, Concession 4, on the north 
side of 191h Avenue. A: quarter acre parcel was purchased by the Trustees of S.S. No. 
7 from Christian Steckley in 1869. lt is not known why the location was changed. In 
1874, an additional quarter acre was purchased to expand the school sity. In 1902, the 
present brick schoolhouse was constructed to replace an earlier building. Another 
classroom, a flat-roofed frame wing, was added after the Second World War. 

Lot 31, Concession 4 (the site of the school house at 3010 19
1
h Avenue) was originally 

patented by Elizabeth Fisher (Oberholtzer), wife of the late Jacob Fisher. (It appears 
that Jacob Fisher passed away before his settlement duties were compl~te and that 
Elizabeth received the patent to the fu'll 200 acres in Dec. of 1804.) 

In 1796, it appears that the families of the Oberholtzers, Cobers, Fishers and Steckleys 
may have traveled together from Somerset County Pennsylvania, in Conestoga 
wagons, as part of a group of 22 people. They stopped in Niagara Falls for a time and 
then traveled on to settle in Markham and Vaughan Townships. They were related 
through marriage and were part of tlle early group of Pennsylvania Ger1nan Tunkers or 
River Brethren (an Anabaptist sec.t related to the Mennonite faith) who settled in 
Markham Township at the end of the 181

h century. 

Although Christian Steckley recei-ved a location ticket to Lot 28, Concession 10, for 
which he received the patent in 1805, the Berczy Census of 1803 lists Steckley with 
his wife Magdalena and their six children as living on Lot 31, Concession 4 It is 
possible that Elizabeth Fisher resided with her parents in Vaughan for a time as she is 
not listed as residing here. From 1.803 to 1843 Steckley also leased the land south of 
here, Lot 30, Concession 4, from the Crown. In 1816 Lot 31 was sold to Christian 
Steckley Jr., his oldest son, for 500 pounds. 

" By 1840 the full 200 acres was willed to John Steckley, the eldest son. After John's 
death in 1865, his wife, Nancy, sold the East Y2100 acres to James Gormley for 
$8000. James Gor1nley, an Irishman, married Margaret Steckley, whom he met while 
teaching at S.S. No. 7 . 
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The west part of Lot 31 was subsequently divided into smaller lots and passed down 
through the Steckley daughters who married into the Eyer, Doner and Wideman 
families. In 1874, John Doner purchased the west 74 acres of Lot 31 from John Eyer. 
This property wrapped around the quarter acre school site sold by Christian Steckley 
to the Trustees in 1869. As noted earlier, the Trustees purchased an additional quarter 
acre in 1874, this time from John Doner and his wife . 

Architectural Reasons 

The Schoolhouse located at 3010 191
h Avenue is a typical example of the classic one-

• 

room schoolhouse form. The pointed-arch windows on the front add a touch of Gothic 
Revival style to an otherwise utilitaria11 structure. Instead of the typical separate girls 
and boys entrances seen on many exa11iples of rural schools, S.S. No.7 has a central 
door on its front fa<;ade, containing comparatively modem double doors. Also, the 
belfry one would expect to see on a rural school is absent, but may have existed at one 
time. The large, upright rectangular window openings on the sidewalls .have been 
partially infilled and reglazed, but in their original form would have allowed much 
light and fresh air to enter the classroom. 

Although the structure has been altered for residential use, much of its original form 
and structure are intact. The single·.storey school is rectangular in plan and 3 bays 
across by 3 bays deep. The building was constructed of red brick in a common bond 
and is set on a foundation of rough cut fieldstone arranged in irregular courses. All the 
window openings have moulded wood brickmoulds, radiating brick voussoirs, and 
lugsills. The easternmost window on the south wall has been converted to a door. The 
gable roof is of a medium pitch with plain projecting eaves and verges. There is a 
single-stack brick chimney at the east gable end. The front entrance is centrally 
located on the gable end and has rectangular double leaf doors. The concrete stoop at 
the entrance has a gabled hood supported by simple brackets. There is a basement 
entrance at the rear of the building, which is enclosed with a small gable ro.ofed brick 
cellarway. 

• 

This particular one room school building is unusual in that it exhibits a more reserved 
style than other remaining examples in Markham. This is a reflection of the changing 
tastes at the tum of the century towards simplicity in architectural fo11n. The datestone, 
indicating the year 1902, is located above the front entrance. 

Contextual Reasons 
' 

Schoolhouse #7 exhibits contextual significance for its association with the historic 
agricultural co1nmunity surrounding the hamlets of Gonnley and Victoria Square. The 
one room schoolhouse supported tl:J.e educational needs of children living on the fa1:ins 
in this vicinity for many generations, until the advent of central schools and bussing in 
the 1960s . 

Significant Heritage Attributes: 
• • • 

1. Rectangular plan; 
2. Red brick walls with radiating voussoirs over openings; 
3. Fieldstone foundation; 
4. Poured concrete front stoop with concrete railings; 
5. Datestone in front gable; 
6. Front door opening for double leaf door; 
7. Gable roofed, bracketed canopy over front door, with its wooden tongue and 

• 

groove gable wall siding and wooden brackets, soffits and fascias; 
8. Front Gothic Revival window openings with multi paned wood sash; 
9. Side window openings with tall, upright rectangular fom1; 
10. Projecting window sills; 
11. Gable roof with projecting eaves, wood soffits and fascias, and bedmould; 
12. Single stack brick chimney; 
13. Rear cellarway cover with its brick walls and gable roof . 

• 




